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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF HAWAII

Civil No. C V 0 3 0 0 3 1 6ACK [[.

JOHN DOE; a minor, by his mother
and next friend, JANE DOE,

COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY RELIEF,
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF,
AND DAMAGES , “ummii]

Plaintiff,
V.

)
)
)
)
)
- - )
KAMEHAMEHA SCHOOLS/ ) _ :
BERNICE PAUAHI BISHOP ESTATE; ) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
and CONSTANCE H. LAU, NAINOA ) :
THOMPSON, DIANE J. PLOTTS, )
ROGBERT K.U. KIHUNE, and J. - )
DOUGLAS ING, in their capacities as )
Trustees.of the Kamehameha Schools/ )
Bemice Pauahi Bishop Estate, )
)
)

Defendants.
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INTRODUCTION

1. This action challenges the legality of certain policies and practices im-
plemented by i)_e’fendant’s with respect to adniis_sion to campuses that are part of the
| Kazlnehame.:haSchools/Bemice Pauahi B.ishop Eétate (KSBE). Plaintiff alieg'esl that
KSBE’s self-described‘ “preference [forj children of Hawatian ancestry” constitutes
invidious discrimiﬂation_ on the baéis of race in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981. Plain-
tiff seeks a declaratory judgment that the challenged policies and practices are illegal. B
and unenforceable; a permanent injhnction against any further .imp.lementation 6f the
challenged policies_ and practices or any otiler admissions policy or practice at KSBE
that grants ‘a preference on the ‘basis of “Hawaiian ancestry”; a permanent injunction
'admitting Plaintiff to a KSBE-campus;'damages;'a-nd -a reasonable attorney’s fee.

JURISI_)ICTION AND VENUE

2. -The Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331
| - -and 1343(3.)(4). Plaintiff’s claim arises under a law of the United Stétes——namely,
42U.8.C. § 1981—~within the meaniﬁg of § 1331 .. By this action, moreover, Plaintiff
| seeks to-recovér damages and secure equitébl_e and other relief under an Act of Con-
gréss providing for the protection of civil rights, namely, 42 U.S.C. § 1981. |

3. Venue lies in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1), as jurisdic-

tion is not founded solely on diversity of citizenship, and all Defendants reside in this

judicial district.




PARTIES

4. - Plaintiff is a minor who briﬁgs this action by his ﬁother as next friend.
Plaintiff is a native and resident éf tﬁe_ State of Hawaii, but neither he nor his mother
is of “Hawaiian ancestry.” They bring this action anonymously on the basis_ of their
reasonable fears of retaliation by KSBE students, their parents, and members of the
public for challenging KSB.E’S preference for applicants of “Hawaiian ancestry.”

5. Plamtff hés twice apﬁlied-for admission to a KSBE campus—for the.
2002~2003 and 2003-2004 school years. With.respec_t_ to his most recent apglication,
Pléintiff “has begn placed oﬁ [KSBE’s]waitir;g list.” Plaintiff is ready and able .t'o'
épply for admission for future school yeafs, and intends to do. - |

6.  Plaintiffis qualified to attend a KSBE campus, having been ihf(‘mﬁed by

-the KSBE Admissions Office that he “was a competitive applicant to Kamehameha

Schools;”

7.  Defendant Kaméhameha Schools/B ernice Pauahi-Bishc)p Estate (KSBE)
is a perpetual, charitable trust estate established under the last wili of B.e_mice:Pa.uahi-
Bishop, great—granddau’ghtér and last royal descendant of Kamehameha th,é Great.

8. Defendants Constance H. Lau; Nainoa Thompson, Diané J. Plotts, Rob-
ert K.'U. Kihune, and J. Douglas Ing are the incumbent trustees of KSBE (Trustees).
Collectively, the Trustees set policy for KSBE and have responsibility for oversight

of KSBE. With respect to the matters desqrib_ed herein, the Trustees were at all times
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acting withih__ the écope of their authority as officers of KSBE and in ﬁlrtherance of -
the intergsts of KSBE. | |

-9 | The Trustees are sued only in the-ir-capacity as trustees of KSBE.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

- 10.  -Thelast will of Bemiée Paﬁahi Bishop directed the trustees of her estate
to “erect and maintain in the Hawaiian Islands two schools . . . to be known as,‘and.
called the Kazﬁehameha Schools.” To that end, the Trustees and their predeccssérs. n
have established, and currently maintain a “school-system wi.th three campusés bn

Oahu, Maui and Hawaii serving more than 4,400 students in kindergarten through

grade 12.”

11. The KSBE schools are private, in that KSBE is not an agency or instru-
mentality of any government; thclzy are conﬁ_nercially operated, in that KSBE charges
~ tuition for children to attend the schools; and they are nonsectarién, in that KSBE has
been judicially determined to be a secular instimti;)n.'

12. | - AsKSBE’s own documénts testify, thé_Vei'y first trustees of the Bernice
| Pauahi Bishop Estate “recognized it was Paﬁahi’s intent to give [Native] Hawaiians
a limited preference in admissions.’.’ Questions and Answers About KS Admissions -
Policies, http://www.ksbe.edu/services}admissibns/policy‘htmi (visited on June 23,
2003). This admissions “preference policy has been adhered to by successor trustees -

for 114 years,” 1.e., up to and including the present day. /d.
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13.  Thus, KSBE forthrightly acknowledges that its “policy on admissions is
to give preference fo children of Hawaiian ancestry.” http://www ksbe.edu/services/
admissions/mainpage. html#Purpose -(yisited on ane 23, 2003).

14. To be sure, the stated preferential policy is seemiligly qualified By the
phrase, “to the extent permitted by Iaw.;’ Id. But KSBE’s understanding of the law
is that it permits the prefer_encé without qr;zalzﬁcation. Thus, in désc_ribing “the legal
status‘ of [its] admissjons policy,” KSBE cites 2s authoritativé and conclusive thé faét-_
that “[i]n 1999, the IRS concluded that *“The Estate’s admission policy is consistent
witﬁ the require?nents for recognition of exemption as an organization described m
section 501(c)(3) of the [Intcrﬁal Revénué] code.”” Questioﬁ_s and Answers About
KS Admissions Policies, supra. |

15. ' The preference touted by KSBE-is niore than just th.eoreticai.' flﬁintiff '
is informed and believes that exb_ept for a single student admitted last y::ar, onlf per-
sons of “Hawailan ances't.ry” have been admitted to _KSBE_in the past four decades.

16.  Even that single admission did not herald a change in policy. VInstead,»
the admission of a non-Native Hawaiian was ppblicly described by the Trustees as a
surprise 'to them and aé a “sifuation” that “brought the problems with the admissions

process into sharp focus.” Indeed, the Trustees are adamant th.’;.lt they “did not change
the admissions policy” but rather “upheld the school’s policy of preference for chil-

dren of Hawaiian ancestry.” The obvious implication is that the Trustees would not
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change the -po_iicy in the future either; to the contrary, they “pledged to work with the -
Hawaiiajn community to carefully review [KSBE’s] admissions process” so that the
anomaly of e non-Native Hawaiian admission would never heppen again;

17.  The Trustees‘ made gocd on.their pledge. Among other measures, the
KSBE admxssmns process explicitly probed the racial characteristics of apphcants
the “Ethnic Ancestry Survey 2003-2004” asked for the fraetlonal racial mix of each
app}icant’s four biological grandparents. B

18.  The requested informaﬁon was put to efficient use: consistent with the
* Trustees’ prbmise, KSBE announced last month tﬁat it is not offering enroliment to
any. non—Native Hawaiians for -the upconlling school }fcar.

19.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that et 'least one person of “Hawaiian
ancestry” whose qualifications were equal to or less than those of Plaintiff was ad-
mitted to a KSBE campus for the 2002-2003 or 2003-2004 school year
20.  Plaintiff is informed and believes that were he of “Hawaiian ancestry,”

“he would heve been admitted to a KSBE campus besed on his applications for the
) | 2002-2003 and 2003—2004 school years. |
DECLARATORY RELIEF ALLEGATIONS

21. An-actual and substantial controversy exists between Plaintiff and De-

fendants as to their respective legal rights and duties. Plaintiff contends that KSBE’s

admissions policy giving “preference to children of Hawaiian ancestry” constitutes
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discriminatiqn on the basis of race in violation 0f 42 U.S.C. § 1981. Defendants con-
tend otherwise. |

22.  Therefore, declaratory relief under 28 U.S.C. § 2201(a) is apprOpriate.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ALLEGATIONS -

23. Ifnotenjoined by this Court, Defendants and their agents will continue
to implement admission policies and practices at KSBE that “givé preference to chil-
dren of Hawaiian ancestry.” This cohtinuing éouxse of condﬁct will cause }Piaintiﬂl' to:

-_suffer irreparable injury, including But not limited to Plaintiff’s inability to compete
for.admission to a KSBE _carﬁpus on an equal footing Without ;egard to his race %md_
Plaintiff's failure to be admitted toa KSBE campus because of hisrace. Plaintiff has
no plain, speedy, and adequate_remedy at law for such injury. |

24. ' Therefore, injunctive relief under 42 U.S.C. § 1981 is appropﬁafe.

CLAIM FOR RELIEF |
(Denial of Equal Rights Under the Lav;f—_——42 US.C. § 1981)
| 25.  Plaintiffs incérporate by.reférence and reallege each é.llegation set forth
in Pafagraphs 1-24 above. |

26.  Section 1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, 14 Stat. 27, now provides in
relevant part that “[a]ll persons within the jurisdiction of the United States shall have
the same right in every State and Territory to make and enforce contracts . . . as is en-

joyed by white citizens.” 42 U.S.C. § 1981(a). As interpreted by the courts, § 1981
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rprohibits priv__ate, commefcially operated, nonsectarian schools from dénying admis-
_sion to prospective studégts on the basis of any race whatsoever; such a prohibition
is within thé constitutional power of Co'rllgress..

27. KSBE is, or operates, é systéam of private, commercially operated, ﬁon—
sectarian schools.

28. In granting a self—deséribed “preference” to those prospective students
with “Hawaiian ancestry,” KSBE admissi_on policies and ﬁractices deﬁy admi,és_ion ‘to
other prospective students because they lack such ancestry. 'fhat denial constifutes
discrimination against prospective students on the Basis of “Hawaiian ancestry.”

29.  Discrimination oﬁ the basis of “Hawaiian ancestry” is discrimination on

} .
the basis of race. Therefore, KSBE admijssion policies and practices that “give pre-

fex;ence'to children of Hawaiian !qnce.stry” constitute disc;iminat’ionon the basis of
race. Such discrimination violates 42 U.VS.C. § 1981.

30. As a direct and proximate 1;esult of this VioIatioﬁ, Plaintiff has suffe;ed,
and continﬁes to suffer, the following injuries: (1) being compelled to compete for
| admission to a KSBE campus on an unequai footing because of his race; (2) being
denied admission to a KSBE céx_npué because of his race; and (3) emotional distress,
mental anguish, péychological trauma, depression, eﬁbarrassment, shock, indignity,

“humiliation, and other general damage.




31.  Plaintiff is entitled to a declaration that tﬁe challenged admission poli-
cies and practices currently implemented at KSBE violate 42 U.S.C. § 1981 and are
therefore illegal and unenforceable.

32.  Plaintiff is entitled to a permanent injunction against any further imple-
mentation by Defendants or their agents of the challenged policies and practices or
any other admissions policy or practice at KSBE that grants a preference-on the basis
of “Hawaiian ancestry,” and to a peﬁnanent ijunction admiﬁing Plaintiff toa KSBE
campus.

33.  Plaintiff is entitled to compensation for the damagesrﬂowing from thé_ '
above-described injuries. Plaintiff wiﬁ establish at trial, aocofc_ling to proof, the pfe-.
cise amount of such damages. |

34. ' Because the actions: of Defendant KSBE were in blatant violatioﬁ- of the ‘

known rights of Plaintiff and were undertaken in willful and conscious disregafd of
those rights and in a manner that rénders KSBE guilty of op:pression,. fraud, or malice -
with the intent to vex, harass, annoy, or injure Plaintiff, Plaintiff is éntitled to- r,ecovef
puniti{e or exemplary damages from KSBE in addition to compensatory damages as

aforesaid. Plaintiff will establish at trial, according to proof,' the precise amount of

such damages.




PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Wherefore, Plainﬁff prays for judgment as follows:
(a) | fer_a decIar_a‘ftion that Defendants’ current admissions policies and prac-
tices giving “preference to children of Hewaiian encestry” violate 42 U.S.C. § 1981
and are therefore ille gai and unenforceable; |
- (b) fora perrﬁanent injunction prohibiting Defe:edants or their agents from
continuing to implement any current admis'sions policy or practice that grants a pfe-. E
ference on the basis of “Hawaiian aneestly,”’ or from ad0pting or implementing any |
such admissions policy or praetice in the fﬁture; .

(¢)  fora permanent injunction requiring Defendants to admit Plaintiff to a

| KSBE campus; ' S

(d)_ - for compensatory demages from all Defendants according to proof;

(e) -for punitive or exemplary damages from Defendant KSBE according to
proof;

(f)  for costs of suit;

(g) for areasonable attorney’s fee pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b); and :
(h) for such other andlrﬁlrther relief as the court may deem proper.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38(a), Plaintiff hereby demands a .'

jury trial of all issues triable of right by ajury.
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DATED: June 15, 2003.
Respectfully _submiﬁ:ed,
JOHN W. GOEMANS
.ERIC GRANT

JAMES F. SWEENEY
SWEENEY & GRANT LLP

o2l L Dz

JOHN W. GPEMANS

Attomeys for Plaintiffs
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* AO 440 (Rev. 8/81) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

District of

Hawaii

JOHN DOE, a minor, by his'mother

and next friend, JANE DOE - S
' SUMMONS IN A CIVIL CASE

V.
KAMEHAMEHA SCHOOLS/ : .

" BERNICE PAUAHI BISHOP ESTATE; CASE NUMBER:
and CONSTANCE H. LAU, NAINOA '
THOMPSON, DIANE J. PLOTTS,

ROBERT K.U. KIHUNE, and J.
DOUGLAS ING, in their capacities as
Trustees of the Kamehameha Schools/
Bernice Pauahi Bishop Estate

TO: (Nﬂmcrand address of Defendant)

e T ARTY 5 ,

ALL iz L0 ENDAN ‘7 Estate
FONUILIU, Fawail Iuo 1o,

| o

YOU ARE HEREBY SUMMONED and required lt(:o serve on PLAINTIFF'S ATTORNEY (name and address)

JOHN W. GOEMANS ERIC GRANT

Post Office Box 2849 : JAMES F. SWEENEY
Kamuela, Hawaii 96743 SWEENEY & GRANT LLP
(808) 887-1199 1527 “I" Strest

Sacramento, California 95814
(916) 341-0321

an answer to the complaint which is served on you with this summons, within 20 days after service

of this summons on you, exclusive of the day of service. Ifyou fail to do so, judgment by default will be taken against you
for the relief demanded in the complaint. Any answer that you serve on the parties to this action must be filed with the Clerk

of this Court within a reasonable period of time after service.

S) WALTER AY.H. CHINN )
N JUN 25 2003

CLERK DATE

(By) DEPUTY CLERK



